18 DECEMBER 2018

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET

Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in the Council Chamber, Appletree Court, Lyndhurst on Tuesday, 18 December 2018

* Cllr B Rickman (Chairman)
* Cllr E J Heron (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:	Councillors:

Mrs D E Andrews * M R Harris

* J E Binns * J D Heron

* Mrs J L Cleary * Mrs A J Hoare

In attendance:

Councillors:	Councillors:
P J Armstrong Mrs S M Bennison G R Blunden S J Clarke S P Davies A T Glass	A A Gossage D Harrison D B Tipp D N Tungate M L White

Also In Attendance:

Mrs G Hickman (New Forest Friends of the Earth)

Officers Attending:

R Jackson, Miss G O'Rourke, C Read, Miss J Debnam, Mrs R Higgins, Mrs J McClay and Mrs K Williams

Apologies:

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Mrs D Andrews.

62 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2018 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

63 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made by any member in connection with an agenda item.

^{*}Present

64 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

No issues were raised in the public participation period.

65 NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL FINAL AIR QUALITY PLAN

The Cabinet was addressed by Mrs G Hickman on behalf of New Forest Friends of the Earth and other environmental organisations. Mrs Hickman welcomed the work that had been done, in conjunction with Southampton City Council, on air quality in the Totton area. She considered that, although the legal limits would be met, there were no grounds for complacency and she welcomed the continuing high profile that the Council would be giving to addressing air quality throughout the District. Friends of the Earth would welcome the opportunity to work with the Council on this issue.

The Portfolio Holder commended the Final Air Quality Plan to the Cabinet for approval for submission to the Secretary of State. The Plan was the result of extensive research and work by the officers, in collaboration with Southampton City Council and the Joint Air Quality Unit. In response to the Ministerial Direction to address air quality along the A35 leading to the boundary with Southampton, this Council had submitted the draft Business Case to Government by the deadline in April and had prepared the Final Plan under budget and to time.

The Cabinet noted that an extensive amount of work had been carried out locally allowing local air quality modelling to be carried out using local data and conditions, including information from real-time air quality monitors at key locations. A combination of factors meant that the target area in this District would meet the required EU Air Quality Directive by 2019. As no additional measures had been identified that would bring compliance forward the National Joint Air Quality Unit had indicated that a "business as usual" approach locally was acceptable.

Members welcomed the proposal that, although the required standards would be met without additional measures, air quality should remain a high priority and a further programme of work carried out for the future. This would include:

- Monitoring of nitrogen dioxide levels would continue on the roadside of the A35 in the New Forest using a real-time monitor and diffusion tubes to ensure that standards were met and that forthcoming development did not cause exceedances of prescribed levels.
- Continued partnership working with:
 - Southampton City Council (producing their Final Plan in January 2019)
 - Hampshire County Council (transport and public health)
 - Local businesses / residents
 - Regional groups
- Research into any funding streams available to this Council
- The production of an Air Quality Strategy for the New Forest as part of the overarching Environmental Strategy.

It was noted that the Council was taking a proactive approach to the issue, looking at the emission performance of its own fleet of vehicles, and also investigating the installation of additional electric vehicle charging points in Council car parks. Homeworking and encouraging the use of cycling by staff would also contribute.

Members thanked the officers for their hard work to progress this issue.

RESOLVED:

That the Air Quality Final Plan for New Forest District Council (December 2018), as attached as Annex A to Report Item 4 to the Cabinet, and its supporting appendices, be approved for submission to the Secretary of State before 31 December 2018.

CHAIRMAN